
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street | Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room | 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, August 9, 2018 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .................................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
2. Agenda Updates  ....................................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 
3. Roll Call ................................................................................................. Clerk Tiana McCall 
 
4. Invocation ............................................................................ Board Member Dave Fiduccia 
 
5. Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – None  
B. Proclamations – “Winnebago County Buy Local Month” – Accepted by Jon Weber, 

Winnebago Buy Local 
C. Presentations – Transparency Reports 

 
6. Public Comment ................................................................................. Registered Speakers 

Members of the public may address the Board by submitting their request no later than 2 hours prior 
to the start of the meeting. Contact www.wincoil.us or (815) 319-4225 for guidelines. 

 
7. Meeting Minutes ............................................................................................ Clerk McCall 

A. Approval of July 12, 2018 minutes 
B. Layover of July 26, 2018 minutes 
 

8. Announcements & Communications ............................................................... Clerk McCall 
A. Correspondence (see packet) 

 
9. Board Member Correspondence ............................................................... Board Members 
 

10. Chairman’s Report .................................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

11. County Administrator’s Report ................................................. Administrator Carla Paschal 
 

12. Approval of Consent Agenda ..................................................................... Chairman Haney 
A. Raffle Report  

 
13. Standing Committee Reports .................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 

A. Finance Committee ....................................................... Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Strongly Encouraging the Sheriff’s Department to Comply with the 

Recommendations of the Winnebago County Auditor and the External County Auditor, 
Baker Tilly 

3. Ordinance Amending Sections of Chapter 2 of the County Code of Ordinances to be 
Laid Over (change in 911 department reporting structure) 

    
B. Zoning Committee ...................................................... Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

Planning and Zoning Requests:   
1. Z-06-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 21.84 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for property that is that is 
located on the west side of Tate Road, +/- 1800 feet north of Latham Road in Owen 
Township , District 1 

2. Z-13-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 36.22 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District for the property that is 
commonly known as 7918 N. Pecatonica Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Pecatonica 
Township, District 1 

3. Resolution to Waive the Zoning and Building Fees Associated with Construction of a 
Ramp to Access a Residence 

4. Committee Report  
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report       

 
D. Operations & Administrative Committee ......................... Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report   
2. Resolution of a Submission of an Advisory Question of Rail Service to the Electors of 

Winnebago County    
         

E. Public Works Committee .............................................. Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. (18-025) Resolution Authorizing an Agreement for the Acceptance of Property Transfer 

from the State of Illinois in the Area of Riverside Blvd./Alpine Road/Forest Hills Road 
Cost:  $00.00       C.B. District:  17 & 20 
 

F. Public Safety Committee…………………………………….. Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

1. Committee Report  
 

G. Government Affairs & Strategic Planning…………………Jean Crosby, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

14. Unfinished Business .................................................................................. Chairman Haney 
 

15. New Business ............................................................................................ Chairman Haney 
 

A. Board Appointment(s) 
1. Cherry Valley Fire Protection:  Rebecca Ihne – Reappointment, Rockford, IL 61109, May 

2018 – May 2021 
2. 12 Mile Grove Cemetery:  Kent Peterson – Reappointment, Pecatonica, IL 61063, 

December 2017 – December 2023 
3. Zoning Board of Appeals:  Carol Wilke, Durand, IL 61024, May 2018 – May 2023 
4. Durand Sanitary District:  Kenneth Gibler, Durand, IL 61024, May 2018 – May 2021 

B. Loves Park 911 Legacy Contract 
 

16. Closed Session .......................................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 
17. Adjournment ............................................................................................ Chairman Haney 

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, August 23, 2018 





 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: August 9, 2018 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Tiana McCall 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk McCall received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission the 

following: 
 

a. Federal / Vol. 83, No. 147 / Tuesday, July 31, 2018 / Notices 
 
2. County Clerk McCall received the following from the Illinois Environmental Protection 

Agency: 
 

a.     A letter regarding Bremner Food Group Inc. (Illinois EPA BOA ID# 201045ABM) 
Construction Permit (15080036) 

 
b. Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste (LPC-PA16): Description of Project: 

Northern/Southern Unit 2018 annual GCCS evaluation & Northern Unit 2018 annual dual-
extraction well evaluation,  pursuant to Conditions VI.7 and VIII.17 – Northern and 
Southern Unit of Winnebago Landfill Facility. 

 
c. A letter regarding Northern Illinois Svc Co (Illinois EPA BOL ID# 2010405051) Transfer 

Station Permit (CCDD2018-028)  
 

3. County Clerk McCall received from COMCAST a letter regarding the expiration of upcoming 
programming agreements. 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: The Winnebago County Clerk recommends that the correspondence listed be placed 
on file as a part of the County Board records maintained by the County Clerk.  
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 







 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
August 9, 2018 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION STRONGLY ENCOURAGING THE SHERIFF’S 

DEPARTMENT TO COMPLY WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY AUDITOR AND  

THE EXTERNAL COUNTY AUDITOR, BAKER TILLY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the office of the Winnebago County Auditor on August 14, 2017, 
released its report regarding the decentralized bank accounts of over one million dollars 
maintained by the County Sheriff’s department outside the custody of the Treasurer’s 
Office and the county’s general ledger, which is subject to monthly audits; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 19, 2018, Baker Tilly, the County’s external auditor, in its 
report recommended that part of the internal audit that should be addressed to allow these 
funds to be appropriated and approved by the County Board with disbursements subject 
to the same controls as other county funds according to Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Baker Tilly further recommended that the County Sheriff’s 
department implement the recommendations made within the County Auditor’s report to 
prevent potential misstatements to the financial statements of the county, to strengthen 
internal controls, and to comply with all state and federal regulations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, County Administration has requested that the County Sheriff’s 
department implement the recommendation of the County Auditor, but the County 
Sheriff has declined this request for the past 10 months. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, in the strongest terms, encourages the County Sheriff to 
implement the recommendations of both the County Auditor and Baker Tilly, the external 
auditor, regarding his decentralized bank accounts to prevent potential misstatements to 
the financial statements of the county, to strengthen internal controls, and to comply with 
all state and federal regulations. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago 
County Sheriff. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 
ILLINOIS 

 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Decentralized Bank Account  
Internal Audit (Sheriff’s Office) 

 

August 16th, 2017 

 
 

The mission of the Winnebago County Auditor's Office is to safeguard Winnebago 
County assets and provide objective, accurate and meaningful information about 

County operations so that the County Board can make informed decisions to better 
serve County citizens. 

 
 
 

 
 

AUDIT TEAM MEMBER(S): 
 

Bryan M. Cutler, Chief Deputy Auditor 
 

 
Copies of County Auditor’s reports are available by request. 

Please contact us at: 
 

Office of the County Auditor 
404 Elm St., Suite 201   ◊   Rockford, IL 61101   ◊   (815) 319-4200 

 
E-mail your request to:  bcrowley@co.winnebago.il.us 

 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY AUDITOR 

William D. Crowley, C.F.E. 

Winnebago County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street, Room 201 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 

(815) 319-4200 
Fax:  (815) 319-4201 



 

- 1 - | P a g e  
 

 
August 16th, 2017 
 
 
Gary Caruana, Winnebago County Sheriff 
Members of the County Board 
Frank Haney, County Board Chairman 
Amanda Hamaker, County Administrator 
Carla Paschal, Chief Financial and Budget Officer 
Susan Goral, Treasurer 
 
The Winnebago County Auditor’s Office is required to perform several duties under Illinois 
Compiled Statute 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3.1. Sec. 3-1005.  The Compiled Statute states that the 
County Auditor is required to “Maintain a continuous internal audit of the operations and 
financial records of the officers, agents or divisions of the County.  The County Auditor shall 
have access to all records, documents, and resources necessary for the discharge of this 
responsibility”.   
 
Accordingly, the County Auditor’s Office has recently completed an internal audit titled 
“Decentralized Bank Account Internal Audit (Sheriff’s Office)”.  A decentralized bank 
account is one held outside the custody of the County Treasurer’s Office.  Furthermore, the 
accounts are not reconciled by the Treasurer’s Office, transactions are not processed through 
the County’s general ledger accounting system in the Finance Office and the County Auditor 
is unable to perform monthly claim audits.        
 
Decentralized bank accounts currently in custody of the Sheriff are as follows: 
 

 

Balance as of Receipts (8 Months) Prior Fiscal Year

Account Name Bank 31-May-17 Oct 16-May 17 Receipts (2016)

Federal Drug Seizure IL. Bank & Trust 266,155 3,217 270,852

State Drug Seizure IL. Bank & Trust 201,976 123,429 85,852

Jail Commissary IL. Bank & Trust 106,975 217,469 385,425

Jail Inmate Social Security IL. Bank & Trust 61,843 59,250 88,925

Jail Inmate Trust IL. Bank & Trust 450,044 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Nuclear Safety Grant IL. Bank & Trust 49,307 57,435 0

  

Sheriff Emergency Response IL. Bank & Trust 4,191 0 7,300

Imprest Account IL. Bank & Trust 6,293 15,662 30,312

CJC Fitness Alpine Bank 9,270 3,575 8,037

1,156,053 480,036 876,703



 

- 2 - | P a g e  
 

 
 
In the absence of authoritative guidance or a legitimate business purpose which requires 
certain accounts to be decentralized, the Auditor’s Office will generally always recommend 
that bank accounts be centralized with the County Treasurer.  There are several benefits to 
centralizing bank accounts with the County Treasurer such as:     
 

• Improved internal controls particularly in creating proper segregation of duties 

• Improved operational efficiency 

• Streamlined year-end audit process with less risk of omitting material transactions 

• Decreased risk of mishandling of funds by employees 

• Increased transparency with County Administration, the County Board and 
constituents. 

 
In regards to the aforementioned accounts we have examined the following: 
 

• The description and purpose of the decentralized account 

• Authoritative guidance authorizing establishment of account  

• Authoritative guidance on use of funds and compared to actual use 

• Internal control policy and timeliness of reconciliations  
 
Our comments, findings and recommendations are below: 
 
 

General Comments: 
 
Finding 1:  Incompatible duties lacking segregation of duties 
 
In our observation the Sheriff’s Office is maintaining adequate records and performing timely 
monthly reconciliations of all accounts in custody.  We did however note instances of 
incompatible segregation of duties across all accounts which could be adjusted.       
 
Recommendation 1: 
 
The handling of receipts and managing of bank accounts should be segregated between 
different employees.  The responsibilities in Group A, below, should not be performed by 
individuals with the responsibilities in Group B. 
 

Group A Group B 
Recording accounting entries Cash receipts (in person or mail) 
Writing and mailing checks Signing checks 
Reconciling bank accounts Reviewing bank reconciliations 
Maintenance of general ledger Opening and reviewing bank statements  
Authorizing disbursements Approving disbursements 
Maintenance of accounts receivable Performing interbank transfers 

 



 

- 3 - | P a g e  
 

 

Account Specific Comments: 
 
Federal Drug Seizure (Bal. $266,154): 
 

The Federal Drug Seizure account was established to hold the proceeds from the 
Department of Justice Equitable Sharing Program which is shared with state and local law 
enforcement agencies.  Among other items, the Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and 
Local Law Enforcement Agencies manual provides guidance on a wide range of 
expenditures, such as general law enforcement operations and equipment purchases, for 
which the shared funds can be used and the associated required bookkeeping procedures.   
 
Findings: 
 

• Accounting for the Federal Drug Seizure account is being completed by the Sheriff’s 
Office and not the Winnebago County Finance Department as required by the Guide 
to Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies. 

 

• Appropriations for expenditures are not being granted by the County Board prior to 
the expenditure of funds.  The Guide to Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law 
Enforcement Agencies manual states that the department must “obtain approval for 
expenditures from the governing body, such as the town council or city manager’s 
office, if appropriate”.  In our opinion, this indicates a requirement for the expenditure 
of funds to be approved and appropriated by the County Board similar to other 
County resources. 

 
• 55 ILCS 5/3-6018 states that “purchases of equipment by the sheriff shall be made in 

accordance with any ordinance requirements for centralized purchasing through 
another county office or through the state which are applicable to all county offices.”  
A firearm purchase in the amount of $21,602 was made without the required 
competitive bid and award process described in the Winnebago County Code. 
 

Recommendations:  
 

• We recommend that resources contained in the Federal Drug Seizure be turned over 
to the County Treasurer’s pooled cash account and a separate accounting fund be 
initiated by the Finance Department in the County’s general ledger system to account 
for the revenues and disbursements of the activity.   

 

• We recommend that the planned expenditures of resources in the Federal Drug 
Seizure account be appropriated by the County Board.  However, the Guide to 
Equitable Sharing for State and Local Law Enforcement Agencies manual 
recommends that anticipated shared property revenue should not be budgeted due to 
uncertainty and unpredictability of future receipts.   

 



 

- 4 - | P a g e  
 

• For purchases of equipment, we recommend that the Sheriff procure items within the 
guidelines of the Centralized Purchasing Ordinance contained in the County Code and 
required by state statute.    

 
State Drug Seizure (Bal. $201,975): 
 

The State Drug Seizure account was established to hold the proceeds from a portion of the 
value of property seized by the State of Illinois which is distributed to the Sheriff’s Office.  
Currently, there are numerous laws throughout the Illinois Compiled Statutes that pertain 
to property seizures. Guidance pertaining to the distribution and use of the proceeds is 
contained in the Illinois Controlled Substances Act.  The funds may be used for certain 
drug enforcement related activities and equipment.   
 
Findings: 
 
There appears to be no authoritative guidance or business purpose which requires this 
account to be decentralized under the Sheriff.  The Illinois Controlled Substances Act is 
silent on how the funds received by the Sheriff should be held.  However, the State’s 
Attorney’s Office also receives a portion of the value of seized property under the Illinois 
Controlled Substances Act which states that resources should be “deposited in a special 
fund in the county treasury and appropriated to the State’s Attorney.”  We believe the same 
treatment should be applied to amounts received by the Sheriff.   
 
Recommendations:  
 

• We recommend that the resources contained in the State Drug Seizure account be 
turned over to the County Treasurer’s pooled cash account and a separate accounting 
fund be initiated in the County’s general ledger system to account for the revenues and 
disbursements of the activity.   

 

• We recommend that the resources contained in the State Drug Seizure account be 
appropriated by the County Board.  Similar to the Federal Drug Seizure account, only 
resources currently available should be appropriated. 

 
Jail Commissary (Bal. $106,975): 
 

The Jail Commissary account holds profits generated from the commissary program which 
provides detainees with items or access to services approved by the Sheriff.  Section 
701.250 Commissary in the Administrative Code Title 20 states, “e) Net profits from the 
commissary system shall be used for education, recreation or other purposes within the jail 
for the benefit of detainees, as deemed appropriate by the Sheriff.  Profits may be used for 
record keeping expenses of the commissary.” 
 
Findings: 
 

• There appears to be no authoritative guidance or business purpose which requires this 
account to be decentralized under the Sheriff. 



 

- 5 - | P a g e  
 

 

• We noted one transaction in the amount of $23,921 to pay the balance of an amount 
due on corrections transport vehicles.  The other portion of the cost of the transport 
vehicles had been paid from County resources.  This transaction appears to be outside 
the allowable use of the Jail Commissary account. 

 

• The Jail Commissary is currently classified as an agency fund for financial statement 
reporting.  However these funds are not held in trust for any particular inmate on a 
temporary basis, but instead are restricted for the overall benefit of detainees.  We 
believe this distinction may indicate that the funds should be classified as a special 
revenue fund for financial statement reporting.          

 
Recommendations:  
 

• We recommend that resources contained in the Jail Commissary account be turned 
over to the County Treasurer’s pooled cash account and a separate accounting fund 
be initiated by the Finance Department in the County’s general ledger system to 
account for the revenues and disbursements of the activity.  The newly created fund 
should also be appropriated by the County Board.     

 

• We recommend that all payments be made in accordance with expenses allowed under 
the Administrative Code.  If the account is turned over to the County Treasurer, the 
County Auditor will review expenses to ensure accordance with the Administrative 
Code prior to disbursement on a monthly basis.  

 

• The Finance Office should evaluate the financial reporting status of the Commissary 
account resources and make any changes if necessary.   

 
Jail Inmate Social Security (Bal. $61,843): 
 

This account is used to collect incentive payments from the Social Security Administration 
which are received as a reward for reporting the incarceration of an individual currently 
receiving Social Security benefits.  This reporting is currently being performed by the 
Department of Information Technology.  The guidance from the Social Security 
Administration provides no restriction on the use of the funds. The proceeds are currently 
being use to subsidize the Sheriff’s budget for the purchase of small equipment, training 
and other small miscellaneous items. 
 
Findings: 
 
There appears to be no authoritative guidance or business purpose which requires this 
account to be decentralized under the Sheriff.  Incentive payments are earned utilizing 
County financial resources and appear to be unrestricted in their use therefore they not 
should not be diverted into a separate checking account under the control of the Sheriff.   

 
 
 



 

- 6 - | P a g e  
 

Recommendations:  
 
We recommend that the Jail Inmate Social Security checking book be closed and that all 
revenue generated from incentive payments be deposited into the General Fund.   

 
Jail Inmate Trust (Bal. $450,043): 
 

The Inmate Trust Account exists solely for the management of funds that are received 
from inmates during their incarceration period.  These funds consist of those funds in 
possession of the inmate taken into custody, money received on behalf of the inmate during 
their incarceration period, or bond monies received for inmates who have been taken into 
custody due to a warrant issued in another county.  We were unable to locate any clear 
guidance as to how the funds shall be held, but due to the business purpose of the account 
and the fact that amounts are receipted and disbursed on a daily basis, we believe this 
account is properly decentralized. 
 
Findings: 
 
None other than indicated in the general comments section.   
 
Recommendations:  
 
None other than indicated in the general comments section.   

 
Nuclear Safety Grant (Bal. $49,306): 
 

This account was established to facilitate receipts and disbursements for the Nuclear Safety 
Grant. 
 
Findings: 
 
We acquired the Nuclear Safety Grant agreement and noted that the grant funds are only 
required to be accounted separately but not held in a separate checking account as is 
currently the status.  This is typical requirement many other grants that currently held in 
the custody of the Treasurer.      
 
Recommendations: 
 
We recommend that the Nuclear Safety Grant checking account be closed and the funds 
be turned over to the County Treasurer.  Accounting for this grant can be accomplished in 
the project accounting module in the County’s primary general ledger system efficiently 
and reliably. 
  

Sheriff Emergency Response Team (Bal. $4,190): 
 

This account was established to maintain the receipts and disbursements of the Sheriff 
Emergency Response Team program.  The balance is very low in this account and no 
additional revenue has been received in the audit period.  



 

- 7 - | P a g e  
 

Findings:  
 
There appears to be no authoritative guidance or business purpose which requires this 
account to be decentralized under the Sheriff. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Assuming no additional revenue associated with the program are expected to be received, 
we recommend that the Sheriff Emergency Response Team checking balance be spent 
down to zero and then the account be closed.  If additional resources are anticipated to be 
received in the future, we recommend the current balance be turned over to the County 
Treasurer and the activity for the program be accounted for in a separate fund within the 
County’s primary general ledger system.   

 
Imprest Account (Bal. $6,292): 
 

This account is utilized to perform a high volume of civil process refunds and make small 
purchases typical of a petty cash account.  The account is reimbursed through the standard 
monthly process using a monthly voucher issued by the Sheriff’s department.  The activity 
is entered by line item into MUNIS.  The voucher contains all the support attached.  The 
Counties Code within the Illinois Compiled Statutes permits the Sheriff to maintain a petty 
cash account.  Additionally, the business purpose of this account appears to support that 
the account remain decentralized.     
 
Findings: 
 
None other than indicated in the general comments section.   
 
Recommendations:  
 
None other than indicated in the general comments section.   
 

CJC Fitness (Bal. $9,270):  
 

This is an account used to hold donations for the employee’s fitness center.  The donations 
will    be used to purchase fitness equipment.  Additional revenue is being received from 
commissions on vending machine sales within the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Findings:   

 
There appears to be no authoritative guidance or business purpose which requires this 
account to be decentralized under the Sheriff. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

- 8 - | P a g e  
 

Recommendations: 
 
We recommend these resources be turned over to the County Treasurer’s pooled cash 
account and a separate accounting fund be initiated in the County’s general ledger system 
to account for the revenues and disbursements of the activity.     



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo and Daniel Fellars 
  COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

August 9, 2018 
 

ORDINANCE 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 
 

2018 CO 
 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2 

OF THE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2 of the County Code of Ordinances, Article III, sets forth 

the duties of various members of the County Administration; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to amend Section 2-124 of Chapter 2, of the 
County Code of Ordinances. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, that Chapter 2, Article III of the County Code of Ordinances be 
amended as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-124. - Duties. 
 
The county administrator shall serve as a member of the county board chairman's 
leadership team and advise on a wide range of issues, including but not limited to 
strategy, policy, planning and communications.  
 

(a) The county administrator shall be subject to the direction and control of the 
county board chairman and shall supervise the administration of the following:  

 
(1) Purchasing and risk management;  

 
(2) Buildings and maintenance;  
 
(3) Supervisor of assessments;  
 
(4) Animal services;  
 
(5) Human resources;  
 
(6) Information technology;  



 
 

 
(7) Regional planning or economic development;  
 
(8) River Bluff Nursing Home;  
 
(9) County board office;  
 
(10) Veterans Memorial Hall;  
 
(11) Chief financial officer; 
 
(12)  County 9-1-1 Center. 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the remainder of Chapter 2, Article III, 

Section 2-124, of the County Code of Ordinances shall remain unchanged. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance Amendment shall be 
effective immediately upon passage. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Winnebago County Clerk shall place a 
certified copy of this Ordinance Amendment upon its adoption in the records of office of 
the Winnebago County Clerk. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE and PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Ted Biondo, Finance Chairman            Ted Biondo, Finance Chairman 
 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Gary Jury                      Gary Jury  
 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Burt Gerl            Burt Gerl 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Dave Boomer       Dave Boomer 
 



 
 

 
________________________________         __________________________________ 
Steve Schultz          Steve Schultz 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Jaime Salgado      Jaime Salgado 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Keith McDonald     Keith McDonald 
  
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia, Public Safety Chairman          Dave Fiduccia, Public Safety Chairman 
 
 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Aaron Booker                      Aaron Booker  
 
________________________________          __________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Fred Wescott      Fred Wescott 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Eli Nicolosi      Eli Nicolosi 
 
________________________________         __________________________________ 
Dan Fellars      Dan Fellars 
 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
                      ________________________________  
                                                                             Frank Haney, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Tiana McCall, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 August 9, 2018  

 
 PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

 
1. Z-06-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 21.84 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District, requested by Borrego Solar 
Systems, Inc., lessee of site, whom is represented by Michael Klingl, Project Manager, for 
property that is located on the west side of Tate Road, +/- 1800 feet north of  Latham Road 
in Owen Township. 
PIN(s): Part of PIN: 07-18-400-002 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA Recommends: DENIAL (2-4) 6/13/18 ZBA HEARING 
 ZBA Recommends: DENIAL (2-4) 7/17/18 ZBA HEARING (inclusive of 6/13/18 & 7/17/18 testimony) 

         ZC Recommends:       APPROVAL (4-2) 
 
2. Z-13-18 A map amendment to rezone +/- 36.22 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 

District to the A2, Agricultural-Related Business District requested by FFP IL Community 
Solar, LLC, lessee of site, which is managed by Forefront Power, LLC, whom is represented 
by Chris Wall, Project Manager, for the property that is commonly known as 7918 N. 
Pecatonica Road, Pecatonica, IL 61063 in Pecatonica Township. 
PIN(s): Part of PIN: 09-05-200-011 C.B. District: 1 
Lesa Rating: N/A Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: YES 

 ZBA Recommends: APPROVAL (4-2) 
 ZC Recommends:        APPROVAL (5-1) 

 
3. Resolution to Waive the Zoning and Building Fees Associated with Construction of a 

Ramp to Access a Residence 
         ZC Recommends:  APPROVAL (5-0) 

 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

4.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not  
            intended as a public notice): 

  
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 12, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of 
 the County Administration Building.  

 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, September 26, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of 
the County Administration Building. 
 

 



1 
 

        Sponsored by Jim Webster  
   
RESOLUTION 

 of the  
 COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 SUBMITTED BY:  ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
 2018 CR_______ 
 
 RESOLUTION TO WAIVE THE ZONING AND BUILDING FEES 
ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION OF A RAMP TO ACCESS A RESIDENCE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County, Illinois Code of Ordinances provides that 
application must be made for a zoning permit and that a building permit prior to construction on 
a home by person’s other than the owner the building; and 
 

WHEREAS, the owner of the property at 4191 Peace Pipe Trail, PIN: 07-33-476-011 
Tullock Wood Trails Totem Pole Section Subdivision, Lot 29 suffers from a disability that 
makes it difficult to use stairs to access the residence; and 

 
WHEREAS, AMBUCS, a 501(c)(3) charitable organization, has decided to assist the 

owner the property known as 4191 Peace Pipe Trail, Winnebago County, Illinois by building 
such a ramp, and has requested that the County of Winnebago waive the fees for the zoning and 
building permits required it to build such ramp; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the zoning and building permit fees due from 
the construction of a ramp on the property identified as 4191 Peace Pipe Trail, Winnebago 
County, Illinois PIN: 07-33-476-011 Tullock Wood Trails Totem Pole Section Subdivision, Lot 
29 are hereby waived.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized 
to prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Planning & 
Zoning Officer, the Winnebago County Building Official, and the Director of Development 
Services. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
ZONING COMMITTEE 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Jim Webster, Chairman 



2 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

JIM WEBSTER, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JIM WEBSTER, CHAIRMAN 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER  
 
 

DAN FELLARS  DAN FELLARS 

DAVE KELLEY  DAVE KELLEY 
 

JAIME SALGADO  JAIME SALGADO 

STEVE SCHULTZ  STEVE SCHULTZ 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY, CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 
TIANNA MCCALL, CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 



 



��������� ��	
�����������������������	
������������ !"�#������� ����"����������$%����� !"���������������������� ��&' ' '()**+,)-)./)01234567,438 976,:4;3<;725=>?@A,4BCDEFGDHI,JKELKBMNO'PQRSTUVRWVXYZ[RQTV\WW]̂_R5=>?@A,DN,B̀ ,̀BaEbC,CcI,MDNNDEFd,@KIBCDFL,=EaD̀DCe,BFH:FHIfIFHIFgI,hEK,JIEf̀I,GDCc,2DNBaD̀DCDINi,7Bgc,gcBfCIK,gBFgcEENI,cEG,aINC,CE,gBKKe,EbC,CcI,MDNNDEF,DF,CcIDK,EGF,gEMMbFDCeiĵ_[VRWkVlmRTn̂QoVjpYW]ZTqY_[qVrWTV\YQTZ[_qRqoVsRYQTVXWmmSU_RnVjQTt_pQuv,5MCKewI,JKELKBMxyz'lmRTn̂QV{TW|TZm'}~'��~�'�������'�}~~}�����~z�'����z��'�����'������'�y���z�~'���z�'����'���'����'�z�~���u'��'�}�z~�y���z�'�z��z�~'������z~~'��������}�}z~'��'~z��z'���'��'�z�~������'�}��z~~'�}�z~'����}���'�y���z�'��'�y���z�'������}~}��z����~�'�y���z�~'�y�'�� z'����'}�'�yz'�������'y��z'�����'}�'��'�z'�'��z��'�zy}��z'��'��}�'������}��'~������'���'����}�}���lmRTn̂QV¡QZT¢'��'���'~zz�'�z����'}��}�}���}��'��'�}�~�'���'�yz�'���'��z� '}�'����£'����}��'����'�y���z�'����� z'�������'}~��~�'�'�y�zz'��'����'~�z�'����z~~¤'¥������}��'¦��'��y}�y'�}��'�}�z'���'����'������}~}��'�����£'§�����}~}��£'���'x�� z��}��̈©}�z����'¦���'ª���'�y���z�'���'����z'�y����y'�y}~'����z~~'�~'����'�}�z~'�~'���'y��z'�����}��'����'����z'��~�'���z'����}�z'�'�z��'��'����z'«����z����'¬y��z�z�'��� ~'���'����'�y���z��®̄rWT̄®V{TWmWR_WU¢u'¥��y'�z�'������'�y���z�'}~'z�}�}��z'��'����}�}���z'}�'���'°������°�'������}���'�~'���'������}~z'���'�������y�~z'����'�}�~�'��� z~'�~'�'�y���z�£'�yz'�±�'�}��'����y'z��y'��� z'����y�~z�'�}�y'�'��zz'��z'��'z«���'��'�z~~z�'����z�'ª��'�����'�zz�'��'���'���'°�'��'���z'���'���'y��z'��'��'���'�z��~'��'���'����'�}�~�'°�'���'�z�'°�'��zz�'²���'�yz'��� z'����'�yz�������}��~'��'~y}��}���'}~'����yz��'x�� z~'����y�~z�'��'���}�z�'��'z������}��'~}�z'��}�}��'��z'���'z�}�}��z'���'°������°��



��������� ��	
�����������������������	
������������ !"�#������� ����"����������$%����� !"���������������������� ��&'()*+,-./01(.201+34567849:6;<=>?46>=4@76AB=4<C4D@7E>6F?=4D6?<=7C@G:4<C4H==;4@;4IF<:4<:=4BC96B4E=J67E4DC>4KJ<>8H=?L4MC7N<4;67F9O<:6<N?4<C<6BB847C>J6BL45C?<49:6;<=>?4=7E4@;4H==;F7G4<:=F>4CI79:6;<=>4IF?:4BF?<LP:=4KQR4:6?4674STT,11.U)+)V)1,48C@49674@?=4C>48C@49674H==;4<:=F7DC>J6<FC7467C<:=>4I68L4P:=>=46>=4?=W=>6B4X,YZ0-,U.[\TZ],̂+1<:6<4<:=4>=9F;F=7<N?4;6>=7<_G@6>EF67467E4<:=4>=9F;F=7<N?4;:8?F96B4C>C99@;6<FC76B4<:=>6;F?<4IFBB47==E4<C4DFBB4C@<467E4>=<@>74<C48C@L4̀C@IC@BE4=7<=>4<:=4F7DC>J6<FC74C74<:=4DC>J?4F7<C48C@>4E6<6A6?=467E<:=74DFBB4<:=4IF?:=?46?4D@7EF7G4A=9CJ=?46W6FB6AB=L4P:=4Q=a@F>=EMC9@J=7<?46>=4@;E6<=E4D>=a@=7<B84?C4;B=6?=4ECI7BC6E4647=I49C;86<4B=6?<4=W=>84b4JC7<:?4C>4?CLc=4?<>C7GB84>=9CJJ=7E4<:6<48C@>49:6;<=>49CBB=9<?4<:F?4;6;=>IC>H4D>CJ4=W=>84>=9F;F=7<46?464B=G6B4;>=96@<FC74dF<4F79B@E=?46BF6AFBF<84I6FW=>467E4674FJ6G=e@?=4I6FW=>fL4gB=6?=46B?C49C7?@B<4C@>.h]*-\*,-4i,jZ)k.'\̂UZT+.l\k0Tm4DC>4D@><:=>4>F?HJ676G=J=7<4<F;?Ln<6><F7G4649>CIED@7EF7G4699C@7<4J684:=B;4D@7E4<>8H=?4JC>=4a@F9HB8L4R>CIED@7EF7G4F?4?C4=o=9<FW=4A=96@?=4F<49CBB=9<?4?J6BBEC76<FC7?4D>CJ4J6784;=C;B=467E4>=69:=?4<:C?=49BC?=?<4<C4<:=4>FE=>L4dn==49>CIED@7EF7G4EF?9@??FC74F74pẐU-)010̂qLfr74J6784I68?O4J6F7<6F7F7G464>=6?C76AB84?Fs=E4IF?:4BF?<4F?46BB46AC@<4J6F7<6F7F7G4>=B6<FC7?:F;?4IF<:48C@>4=W6B@6<F7G4<:=>6;F?<?dI:=<:=>4C>47C<4<:=8N>=464J=JA=>fL4t==B4D>==4<C4GFW=4=69:4=W6B@6<C>464BFJF<u4DC>4F7?<679=O4vC7B84w4HFE?4648=6>O4;B=6?=Lx4KB?C4EC7N<A=4?:84<C4?=<49>F<=>F6O4BFH=4<:=49:FBE4J@?<4A=4@76AB=4<C4?6D=B84>FE=464<>6EF<FC76B4AFH=467E4<:6<4<:=4;6>=7<?46>=4F7WCBW=E467E4BFH=B8<C4:=B;4<:=49:FBE4>FE=4D>=a@=7<B8LS]+-my,.l,-1\̂3.gB=6?=49:CC?=4C7=4;=>?C74F748C@>49:6;<=>4<C4;B69=46BB4KJ<>8H=4C>E=>?L4P:F?49@<?4ECI74C7464BC<4CD49C7D@?FC767E4E@;BF96<=E4C>E=>?O4=<9L4P:F?4;=>?C74J6846B?C469<46?4<:=4B=6E=>4CD48C@>49:6;<=>N?4KJ<>8H=4<=6JL4d?==4z=84QCB=?4EF?9@??FC74F7{,]V,-1(0*.[,|,k\*],̂+Lf}-U,-0̂q3.̀C@49674C>E=>4AC<:4KJ<>8H=?467E4K5~�Rn49:6;<=>4?@;;BF=?4C7BF7=46<4���3)]+-my,1+\-,3\-qL4rD48C@4>=a@=?<469:6;<=>4BCGF7O48C@49674699=??49:6;<=>4;>F9F7G467E4dDC>4AC<:4KJ<>8H=467E4K5~�Rn4C>E=>?f4>=a@=?<4I=4F7WCF9=48C@>49:6;<=>>6<:=>4<:674;68F7G4FJJ=EF6<=B84IF<:49>=EF<496>E4dw�eE684<=>J?fL�>48C@49674C>E=>4WF64=J6FB4d-\j)̂ ,̂̂�)]VZT13\-qf4C>4;:C7=4d���e�w�e����4���bfLgB=6?=4;>CWFE=4KJ<>8H=4IF<:48C@>4\-U,-�.̂)],�.)UU-,11�.*(\̂,�467E4,])0k.)UU-,1146?4I=BB46?4<:=4-,T0*0,̂+�1.̂)],467E4<:=)UU-,11.+(,.+-my,.1(\ZkU.V,.1(0**,U.+\L��F?<F7G49@?<CJ=>?4IFBB4A=46?H=E4<C4W=>FD84?:F;;F7G467E4AFBBF7G4F7DC>J6<FC74<C4F7?@>=4;>C;=>4E=BFW=>8L4c:=74>=a@=?<F7G464YZ\+,A=4?@>=4<C4?;=9FD84<:6<N?4I:6<48C@4I67<467E4;>CWFE=46BB4<:=4?6J=4F7DC>J6<FC7LKJ<>8H=_K5~�Rn4699=;<?4;68J=7<4WF64F7WCF9=4<C48C@>49:6;<=>4dw�eE684<=>J?fO49:=9H4C>49>=EF<496>E�4�F?6O456?<=>R6>EOKJ=>F9674��;>=??L4gB=6?=46BBCI4w4<C4�4A@?F7=??4E68?4DC>4C>E=>4;>C9=??F7GLi(0**0̂q3.c=4?:F;4t=E��4G>C@7E4@7B=??48C@46?H4@?O4I:=74;B69F7G4<:=4C>E=>O4<C4?=7E4F<464EFo=>=7<4I68L4c=49674;>CWFE==�;=EF<=E4?:F;;F7G46<46EEF<FC76B49C?<L



��������� ��	
�����������������������	
������������ !"�#������� ����"����������$%����� !"���������������������� ��&'()*+,-).-)/*++(012(.)3456789:;86<<6=7)>/-?)@(A>(,0B)CD1//1?E)F@(1ED0)G*?)/-0(?01*++H),*I()H->@)GD*/0(@)*)+-0)-F)J-?(HB)K?-@.(@)0-)J*L()10)M-@0D)10N)H->)J>,0)-@.(@)(?->ED)O1L(,)0-)F1++)*)/*++(0)P*O->0)QRR)+O,B)M-@0DS0D*0T,)*O->0)URVUW),J*++)O1L(,)-@XVY)+*@E()O1L(,B)Z6[6=7:\8]49)+1,0,)M(1ED0B̂)*?.)H->)M1++)@(*++H)M*?0)0-)D*I()*GG(,,)0-)*)+-*.1?E).-GL)_)0D(@(T,)*O->0)*)̀UQR)F(()1FH->).-?T0B)a-(,)-?()-F)H->@)J(JO(@,)-@)*)F@1(?.)-F)0D()GD*/0(@)-M?)*)O>,1?(,,b)cD(H)J1ED0)O()M1++1?E)0-)+(0)H->),D1/)0-)0D(1@.-GLBde94fg5:hi]jk]96l=:Z695mn)o,0*O+1,D1?E)*?)oI*+>*01-?)C10()1,)*)E@(*0)M*H)F-@)GD*/0(@,)0-)1.(?01FH).(,(@I1?E)GD1+.@(?)-@)*.>+0,MD-)M->+.)O(?(F10)F@-J)*?)pJ0@HL(Bq)c-)J*L()*)F*G1+10H)*?)oI*+>*01-?)C10(N)0D()GD*/0(@)*E@((,)0-)G-?01?>*++H)(A>1/)0D(),10(M10D)G>@@(?0)0@HL(,N)*GG(,,-@1(,)*?.)0@*1?1?E)*,)M(++)*,)/@-I1.()0@HL(,)0-)@1.(@,)MD-)*@()(I*+>*0(.)OH)*)0D(@*/1,0)*0)0D()F*G1+10HBp?)-?VE-1?E)@(+*01-?,D1/)J>,0)O()J*1?0*1?(.)O(0M((?)0D()GD*/0(@)*?.)0D()(I*+>*01-?),10()0-)E>*@*?0((),>GG(,,Br(@()1,)0D()hi]jk]96l=:Z695:sk6t5)M10D)F>++).(0*1+,Bu->@)GD*/0(@)1,)@(,/-?,1O+()F-@)L((/1?E)0D()(I*+>*01-?),10(T,)1?F-)>/V0-V.*0()M10D)0D()pvw),-)10)1,)G-@@(G0)-?)0D()M(O,10(BoI*+>*01-?)C10()/@1G1?E)1,)+-M(@)0D*?)GD*/0(@)/@1G1?E)P-?)0@HL(,)*?.)*GG(,,-@1(,̂)O>0)0D(@()*@()*)F(M)@(A>1@(J(?0,)0D*0)G-J(*+-?E)M10D)0D()@(.>G(.)/@1G1?EB)u->)J*H)-?+H)-@.(@)-?()J-.(+)-F)(*GD)0@HL()F-@)0D()(I*+>*01-?),10()*?.)H->)G*??-0)@(-@.(@)0D*00@HL()>?01+)*)?(M)J-.(+)G-J(,)->0B)x(10D(@)0D()GD*/0(@)?-@)0D()(I*+>*01-?),10()J*H)E1I()*M*H)0@HL(,)H->TI()/>@GD*,(.)F-@)0D((I*+>*01-?),10()>?01+)0D(H)O(G-J()-O,-+(0(B)oI*+>*01-?),10()O1L(,).-)?-0)G->?0)0-M*@.,)URVF-@VURBde94fg5:y4]6j54m:z>@GD*,1?E)*?.)J*1?0*1?1?E)*?)pJ0@HL()0@*1+(@)D*,)O(G-J()*?)1?G@(*,1?E+H)/-/>+*@)GD-1G()*J-?E)GD*/0(@,B{GG*,1-?*++H),(I(@*+)GD*/0(@,)1?)0D(),*J()@(E1-?)*E@(()0-),/+10)0D()G-,0N)J*1?0(?*?G()*?.)>,()-F)*)0@*1+(@B)cD1,)0@*1+(@)F>++)-F0@HL(,)*?.)*.*/0*01-?,)1,)*)/(@F(G0)0--+)-?)MD((+,Bq)|,()*0)0@HL()E1I(*M*H,N)F>?.@*1,(@,N)G-JJ>?10H)(I(?0,N)*?.)O1L().*H,)0-1?0@-.>G()*)G-JJ>?10H)*?.)0D(@*/1,0,)0-)0D()J*?H)J-.(+,)-F)pJ0@HL(,)*?.)0D()J1,,1-?)-F)p}~|wCBc@*1+(@)/@1G1?E)1,)+-M(@)0D*?)GD*/0(@)/@1G1?E)PF-@)0@HL(,)*?.)*GG(,,-@1(,̂)O>0)0D(@()*@()*)F(M)@(A>1@(J(?0,)0D*0)G-J()*+-?E)M10D0D()@(.>G(.)/@1G1?EB)u->)J*H)-?+H)-@.(@)-?()J-.(+)-F)(*GD)0@HL()F-@)H->@)0@*1+(@)*?.)H->)G*??-0)@(-@.(@)0D*0)0@HL()>?01+)*)?(MJ-.(+)G-J(,)->0B)u->)J*H)?-0)E1I()*M*H)0@HL(,)H->TI()/>@GD*,(.)F-@)H->@)0@*1+(@)>?01+)0D(H)O(G-J()-O,-+(0(B)c@*1+(@)O1L(,).-?-0)G->?0)0-M*@.,)URVF-@VURBde94fg5:�5954]=;:�=696]96i5m:wD*/0(@,)G*?)GD--,()0-)F>?.)0@HL(,)F-@)i5954]=;)MD-)G*??-0)-/(@*0()*)0@*.101-?*+)O1L(B)}*?HGD*/0(@,)@(*GD)->0)0-)0D(1@)+-G*+)�p)-@)-0D(@)I(0(@*?,)E@->/,)0-)F1?.)@(G1/1(?0,)MD-)M->+.)O(?(F10B)p}~|wC)O(+1(I(,)I(0(@*?,,D->+.)D*I()(I(@H)-//-@0>?10H)0-)O()(?E*E(.)1?)0D()*G01I()+1F(,0H+()0D(H)D*.)/@1-@)0-)0D(1@).1,*O1+10HB)cD(@()*@()�5�k645t�l�ke5=9;).(,1E?(.)(,/(G1*++H)F-@)0D()�(0(@*?,)K?101*01I(�)-?()0-)O()F1++(.)->0)OH)0D()@(G1/1(?0)*?.)0M-)0-)O()F1++(.)->0)OH)0D(1@/DH,1G*+)-@)-GG>/*01-?*+)0D(@*/1,0B)'(),0@-?E+H)@(G-JJ(?.)0D*0)H->@)GD*/0(@)G-++(G0,)0D1,)/*/(@M-@L)F@-J)(I(@H)@(G1/1(?0)*,)*+(E*+)/@(G*>01-?Bde94fg5:s4]=9:�5j<m:wD*/0(@,)*@()(?G->@*E(.)0-)>01+12()0D()D(+/)-F)0D()a(I(+-/J(?0)a1@(G0-@)-?),0*�)0-)1.(?01FH)F>?.1?E,->@G(,)F-@)H->@)GD*/0(@T,)pJ0@HL()/@-�(G0)*?.)0-)D(+/)H->),>OJ10)M1??1?E)E@*?0)/@-/-,*+,B)a>()0-)0D()?>JO(@)-F)/(-/+()0D(a1@(G0-@),>//-@0,N)0D(H)G*?)E1I().1@(G01-?N)*.I1G()*?.)F*G1+10*0()H->@)(�-@0,)O>0)G*??-0)J*?*E()0D()(?01@()/@-G(,,)F-@)H->B�]96l=]j:de94fg5:�6;8:�6;9mn:cD()�]96l=]j:de94fg5:�6;8:�6;9)(?,>@(,)0D*0)0D()pJ0@HL()/@-E@*J)1,)0@>+H)*)?*01-?M1.(/@-E@*JB)cD@->ED)0D()'1,D)�1,0N)1?.1I1.>*+,)M10D)+1J10(.)F1?*?G1*+)@(,->@G(,)MD-).-)?-0)+1I()G+-,()0-)*)+-G*+)p}~|wC)GD*/0(@G*?),01++)(?�-H)0D()F>?)*?.)F@((.-J)-F)@1.1?E)0D(1@)-M?)pJ0@HL(B)cD(@()*@(),(I(@*+)�5�k645t:�l�ke5=9;)0D*0)0D()@(G1/1(?0)-@@(G1/1(?0T,)/*@(?0�E>*@.1*?)*?.)0D()@(G1/1(?0T,)/DH,1G*+)-@)-GG>/*01-?*+)0D(@*/1,0)M1++)?((.)0-)F1++)->0)*?.)@(0>@?)0-)0D()pvwO(F-@()@(G1/1(?0)1,)/+*G(.)-?)0D()x*01-?*+)'1,D)�1,0B)'()@(G-JJ(?.)@(G1/1(?0,),(0)>/)*)F>?.@*1,1?E)/*E()0-)J*L()0D()M*10)01J(,D-@0(@B)a-?*01-?,)G*?)0D(?)O()J*.()OH)F@1(?.,N)F*J1+H)*?.)-0D(@),>//-@0(@,B



��������� ��	
�����������������������	
������������ !"�#������� ����"����������$%����� !"���������������������� &�'()*+,-./012-342*5.1*6-71043282*91.:10;<=>?@ABCDDEAFGH=I>GJAKLMNO<EAP>?QARGSAGTGUV@VA@VW?GH=I>GJS?RIJGUSR=XSAHIAHR@UGXYASHWV@>HSQAZIAVGH@EA[IU@AHRG>A\]QDA[=JJ=I>A=>S?RIJGUSR=XSARĜ@A_@@>AGTGUV@VAHIAÎ@UABDÈ̀ ÀSHWV@>HSAXWUSW=>aV@aU@@SA=>AbcdefghijkclmhbdEjnggobhkfnphijkclmhbdEjebllgcbhkcninqdjG>VjhorfninqdQAsJ@GS@Â=S=HAHR@AtgcnihmecfbjumnqmhvXGa@AwIUAwWJJAV@HG=JSQAsGUH=?WJGUJYAHR@AxpynmvhkfnpjynmjzchbklmeAJ=>{Q|}~��jKJJAKLMNO<A?RGXH@USAGU@A@>?IWUGa@VAHIASXI>SIUAI>@A�B�SHWV@>HAU@aGUVJ@SSAIwATR@HR@UAIUA>IHAYIWUA?RGXH@UAw=>G>?=GJJYSWXXIUHSAHR@AXUIaUG[AGHAHR=SAH=[@QsJ@GS@AJ=[=HAGVV=H=I>GJA?RGXH@UASXI>SIUSR=XSAHIA>IA[IU@AHRG>AHRU@@SXI>SIUSR=XSAwIUA@̂@UYA\D̀ ÀYIWUA?RGXH@UAVI>GH@SAHIAHR@<?RIJGUSR=XSAwIUAZR@UGX=SHSAwW>VQAsJ@GS@A_@AGTGU@AHRGHASXI>SIU=>aAGSHWV@>HA=SA[W?RAJ={@AGA>I[=>GH=I>EA=HA[G{@SA=HAJ={@JYA�okjpnkqohmhpkllrAHR@ASHWV@>HAT=JJAU@?@=̂@AGAS?RIJGUSR=XQA<XI>SIU@VSHWV@>HSAHRGHAVIA>IHA[@@HAHR@AS@J@?H=I>A?U=H@U=GAT=JJA>IHA_@A?I>S=V@U@VQ�@AGU@A>IAJI>a@UAGS{=>aA?RGXH@USAHIAUG>{AHR@=UASXI>SIU@VASHWV@>HSQ|}~��jKASHWV@>HA=SA>IHA?I>S=V@U@VA?RGXH@UASXI>SIU@VAW>J@SSAGA?RGXH@UAw=JJSAIWHAG>VAU@HWU>SAHR@AORGXH@U�<XI>SIU@V<?RIJGUSR=XAwIU[A_YALGYA�Qtgcnihmecfbjulmenp�A�@AU@?I[[@>VA@G?RA?RGXH@UAGXXI=>HAGAX@USI>A�IUAGAw@TAX@IXJ@�AHIAJ@GVA=HSAS?RIJGUSR=XA@�IUHSQAZR=SX@USI>ASRIWJVA_W=JVAG>VA[G=>HG=>AU@JGH=I>SR=XSAT=HRA@VW?GHIUSAGHAJI?GJAW>=̂@US=H=@SAT=HRAHR@UGXYAXUIaUG[SQAZR@YASRIWJVS?U@@>ASHWV@>HAGXXJ=?GH=I>SAG>VA[G{@AU@?I[[@>VGH=I>SAHIAHR@A_IGUVAwIUA?RGXH@UASXI>SIUSR=XQA�@AU@?I[[@>VAYIWAU@�W@SHAIUU@�W=U@ÂIJW>H@@UARIWUSAT=HRAYIWUA?RGXH@UA=>AIUV@UAwIUAGASHWV@>HAHIAaG=>ASXI>SIUSR=XQA�S@@A�@YA�IJ@SAV=S?WSS=I>A=>A�lv�lmecfb�l�linbvlpkQ�~fvlkh�il��hpohmdA�AM@a=>AS?U@@>=>aAXISS=_J@ASHWV@>HAGXXJ=?G>HSQ�hkl��l�mohmdjopkfij�hdj�A�AFGH=I>GJAKLMNO<AG??@XHSAI>J=>@AGXXJ=?GH=I>SAwIUA=HSAS?RIJGUSR=XAXUIaUG[QAKJJSWXXIUH=>aAVI?W[@>HSAGJSIAVW@A_YALGYA�AwIUAGJJAGXXJ=?G>HSQA<HWV@>HSAGU@A=>SHUW?H@VAHIAa=̂@ASXI>SIU=>aA?RGXH@UAG?IXYQAKJJA?RGXH@UASXI>SIUSR=XAwIU[SAGU@AVW@ALGYA�Q�fr��oid�AZR@A<?RIJGUSR=XAOI[[=HH@@AT=JJA[@@HAGHAHR@A�@SIWU?@AO@>H@UAHIA[G{@AGTGUVAS@J@?H=I>SQ�hkl��oidA�A�=>GJAS?RIJGUSR=XAT=>>@USAT=JJA_@AG>>IW>?@VQAKTGUVA>IH=?@SAT=JJA_@A@[G=J@VAHIA?RGXH@USQAO@UH=w=?GH@SĜG=JG_J@AWXI>AU@�W@SHQ�hpkjknjebnpenmjhjekorlpkj�okjrfrp�kjegmllpjhpdnpl�AFIAXUI_J@[QA�[G=JA�G>=?@AGHAegcnihme�hv�oge�nmqAG>VAGS{AwIUSHWV@>HAJ@GVSQA�@A?G>AS@>VAYIWAJ@GVSAwUI[AGA?@UHG=>ASHGH@AIUAS?RIIJAIUAXUIaUG[Q



��������� ��	
�����������������������	
������������ !"�#������� ����"����������$%����� !"���������������������� &�&'()*+,-.)/011234+5)6-.748-9:;<=>?@ABCDEFG?BFE?EHCIJEFEK?DI?@AIIGE?DAELF?IJM?NIFH?IN?@IHHOMLDP?GEFQL@E?REMENLDLMS?CEICTE?JLDA?KLGBRLTLDLEGU?VALG?@BMDBWE?IM?BM?LMNLMLDE?QBFLEDP?IN?NIFHGU?VAEFE?BFE?DJI?JIMKEFNOT?CFIXE@DG?DABDY?JALTE?MID?IZEFEK?B@FIGG?DAE?MBDLIM?IF?GOCCIFDEKKLFE@DTP?RP?DAE?9[=Y?BFE?GDLTT?NFE\OEMDTP?@AIGEM?RP?@ABCDEFGU]̂_ àbcdefdghi?:BWLMS?AIHEG?B@@EGGLRTE?RP?ROLTKLMS?FBHCG?ABG?REEM?B?CICOTBF?B@DLQLDP?BHIMS?@ABCDEFGU?9?@IHCTEDE?ĵ_`kcdefdghahcdfl?LG?BQBLTBRTEUmf̂ ǹdolapêqhjrcgfsia;OLTKLMS?BMK?FENOFRLGALMS?CTBPSFIOMKG?DABD?@BM?RE?OGEK?RP?@ALTKFEM?FESBFKTEGG?IN?BRLTLDPU'



��������� ��	
���	����
�
������������������� �!���������"�	����	���� ���# # #$%&&'(%)%*+%,-./0123(0/4 532(607/873.9:;<=;>?@<ABCDCE<FBDGH<ABCI;GCDF?B<J;A<E:DCCKD?BL4MN(1OPQNRSTUVWXYZ[#W\]̂#_̀#abccbWd#e]Wec]#bd#fg]#hdbf]X#ifYf]j#j]cklbX]dfbkZ#YjgY\bdm#XbjYnbcbfZo#VgYfpj#d]ŶcZ#qrstru#Wk#vjoVg]#wxtyxz{r|}zr~s{x�{xrw}tyz}�r�w~w�rzx�}zy{#fgYf#d]ŶcZ#gYck#WkYcc#YXvcfj#�bfg#XbjYnbcbfb]j#m]f#dW#Y]̂Wnb�#egZjb�Yc#Y�fb\bfZ[#YdbaeŴfYdf#g]Ycfg#n]gY\bŴ#fW#g]ce#Y\WbX#�ĝWdb�#Xbj]Yj]j#jv�g#Yjg]Ŷf#Xbj]Yj][#jf̂W�][#XbYn]f]j[#Ŵ#�Yd�]̂o#�d#kY�f[#e]Wec]#�bfgXbjYnbcbfb]j#Ŷ]#��#aŴ]#cb�]cZ#fW#gY\]#fgWj]#Xbj]Yj]jo#�gbcX̂]d#�bfgXbjYnbcbfb]j#Ŷ]#���#aŴ]#cb�]cZ#fW#n]#Wn]j]#fgYd#Wfg]̂j#fg]b̂#Ym]o�d]#Wk#fg]#c]YXbdm#�Yvj]j#kŴ#fgWj]#Xbjfv̂nbdm#jfYfbjfb�j#bj#cbabf]XY��]jj#fW#Y#a]Ydj#Wk#]�]̂�bj]o�]�beb]dfj[#eŶ]dfj#YdX#fg]̂Yebjfj#̂]eŴf#fgYf#fg]#�af̂Z�]fg]̂Ye]vfb�#f̂b�Z�c]#êW\bX]j#bd�̂]Yj]X#jf̂]dmfg[#aWnbcbfZ#YdX�WŴXbdYfbWd#Yj#�]cc#Yj#j]ckl�WdkbX]d�]#YdX#eWjbfb\]#e]]̂#bdf]̂Y�fbWdoVgYf#Ycc#YXXj#ve#fW#m̂]Yf#]�]̂�bj][#fg]#WeeŴfvdbfZ#fW#n]#WvfXWŴjYdX#�vjf#ecYbd#kvdo�v̂#eYjjbWd#bj#fW#�̂]Yf]#Y#�ŴcX#�g]̂]#]\]̂ZWd]#�gW#�gWWj]j[#�Ydb̂X]�Vg]#�af̂Z�]#�̂Wm̂Ya#mb\]j#�gYef]̂#a]an]̂j#nWvdXc]jjWeeŴfvdbfb]j#fW#j]̂\]#YdX#fW#e]̂jWdYccZ#�bfd]jj#cb\]j#fYdmbncZ�gYdm]X#nZ#�gYef]̂#kvdX̂Ybjbdm#]�Ŵfjo�k#fgYfpj#Y#eYjjbWd#ZWv#�Yd#m]f#n]gbdX[r�}str�r����yxz[#nvbcX#Y#�gYef]̂#Ŵ#]d�Wv̂Ym]#ZWv̂#�gYef]̂#fW#eŶfb�beYf]o�������� ¡¢£¤¢£ £¥¢¦§�¤



��������� ��	
���	����
�
������������������� �!���������"�	����	���� ���̂6?=;63<=F3PFMC634==359;A5H<N3B=7A@M6;23_AC=:6;7O67439AA@A497B638976AN3O97<37=7>;=?@4A39;63AB;9OUH@7C34=36:673G66>3456@;3M==;A3=>67D3Q56<3=\67359:637=3@746;79H?F7M@7C3A=F;B6A39:9@H9UH63=456;3459734563F7>9H949UH63B5=@B63=?3B59;C@7C34563>6=>H6385=3;6B6@:63456@;3A6;:@B6AD_O4;<G6367AF;6A345943_V̂ àW38@HH376:6;359:634=3O9G6345943B5=@B6D3b6359:6393=7LC=@7CN3A=B@9HH<3;6A>=7A@UH63?F7M@7C3A4;69O459439HH=8A3FA34=3C@:63989<39U=F43cNJJJ3_O4;<G6A369B53<69;34=3>6=>H6385=3B=FHM37=43=456;8@A639Y=;M3456ODd7345@A389<36:6;<3O6OU6;N36:6;<3BFA4=O6;N36:6;<3M=7=;N36:6;<3>9;476;3=;C97@]94@=73U6B=O6A393?@797B@9H3A49G65=HM6;3@73=F;O@AA@=734=3B;69463O=U@H@4<397M3@7M6>67M67B63?=;3>6=>H638@453M@A9U@H@4@6AD



��������� ��	
���	����
������������	��������������
���	 ���������	
���	����
���� ���! ! !"#$$%&#'#()#*+,-./01&.-2 310&4.5-651,789:;<=>9?@&A=:B=<CD$)#(D$)E&789:;<=>9?@>&F:=&09G=<@?>H>&IG8?@?GJH>KLMNO!PQRRS!TUVLWMUX!YZ[\]KS!̂MN_!̀Ua!UbUcdOd!aǸWXUcàLea!VWaVfdOMVa!efcafLMg!dOgcOOa!LM!hijklmnopqirsnhjtpummvhnqluwnoqirsnhjtpkhrrmiponwxvnxrphnqiuouxjpnwypirnslwxpnvyluouxj_!zWdUVOS!{WcO!V̀UM!|}_~!{LXXLWM!LM!aǸWXUcàLea!̀U�O!�OOM!UbUcdOd!VWW�Oc!PRS���!aVfdOMVa_�olxl�lolqj�!KVfdOMVa!{faV!�O!\K!NLVL�OMa!UNNOeVOd!LM!U!gcUdfUVO�XO�OX!ecWgcU{!V̀UV!La!UNNcOdLVOd!��!V̀O!UeecWecLUVO�V̀OcUe�ecW�OaaLWM!UfV̀WcLV�!LM!è�aLNUX!V̀OcUe�S!WNNfeUVLWMUX!V̀OcUe�SaeOOǸ!XUMgfUgO!eUV̀WXWg�S!Wc!̀OUcLMg!UfdLWXWg�_!YaaLaVUMV!WcfMdOcgcUdfUVO!ecWgcU{a!UcO!MWV!OXLgL�XO_!YbUcda!UcO!�UaOd!WM�LMUMNLUX!MOOdS!NW{{LV{OMV!VW!XWNUX!NW{{fMLV�S!ǸUcUNVOc!�Wc!NW{eUaaLWM!UMd!LMVOgcLV�S!UMd!NUcOOc!W��ONVL�Oa_��Oc!|PR�S���!La!UbUcdOd!UMMfUXX�!bLV̀!LMdL�LdfUX!UbUcda!cUMgLMg!�cW{!|R��!VW!|PSR��_!z̀OcO!La!WMO!VbW��OUc!UbUcd!LM!V̀OU{WfMV!W�!|�S���_!YbUcd!{WMLOa!UcO!dOeWaLVOd!LMVW!V̀O!aVfdOMV�a!NcOdLV!UNNWfMV!bLV̀!V̀O!�LMUMNLUX!ULd!W�LNO!W�!V̀O!OdfNUVLWMUXLMaVLVfVLWM_TUVLWMUX!YZ[\]KS!̂MN_!UNNOeVa!UeeXLNUVLWMa!�Wc!LVa!aǸWXUcàLe!ecWgcU{!�cW{!�nsmip�pfMVLX!�njp�S!UMMfUXX�_KVfdOMVa!{faV!af�{LV!UXX!eWcVLWMa!W�!V̀O!UeeXLNUVLWM!�O�WcO!V̀O!ZU�!�!dOUdXLMO_!z̀O!WMXLMO!UeeXLNUVLWM!bLXX!UXXWb!aVfdOMVa!VWaU�O!V̀OLc!bWc�!UMd!cOVfcM!UV!U!XUVOc!VL{O_M̂!UddLVLWM!VW!V̀O!�LXXLMg!WfV!gOMOcUX!LM�Wc{UVLWMS!V̀O!aVfdOMV!bLXX!�O!cO�fLcOd!VW!feXWUd�z̀OLc!��������cOO!YeeXLNUVLWM!�Wc!�OdOcUX!KVfdOMV!YLd�!KY�!�KVfdOMV!YLd!�OeWcV�



��������� ��	
���	����
������������	��������������
���	 ���������	
���	����
���� ���̂:%!(&,1&%2/(#,.%,%.#-2)&'*%$"#)%>#2"%"&0+1*","_1%#R+-&-#'$+")+'0%>#2"%&'"#(()&'*%W>#2%)+0<*%,(1#%$+'.%*<+1%#'%>#2"%1*2.&'*%/#"*,(1#)&;<&"&X6%B$%*<+1%+1%>#2"%$+"1*%>&,"E%*<&%"&0+1*","_1%#R+-&%),>%'#*%3&%;+((+'0%*#%0+4&%>#2/"##$%#$%&'"#(()&'*%,*%*<+1%&,"(>%1*,0&6%B'%*<,*%-,1&E%>#2%),>%2/(#,.%>#2"%,--&/*,'-&(&**&"6ÙFaJ[IJbZÛUIcJd[eZJFLZa[IHGJâĤL]LÎ:%B*%1<#2(.%3&%#'&%/,0&E%.#23(&%1/,-&.%,'.%,*%(&,1*%fg%/#+'*%$#'*6%h2*E%3&>#'.%*<,*E+*%1<#2(.%3&i/&"1#',(6%Q#2%.#'_*%'&&.%*#%*&((%21%1-<##(%+1%&=/&'1+4&%,'.%(#'0%,'.%,((%*<&%#*<&"%*<+'01%*<,*%,"&%*"2&%$#"%&4&">1+'0(&%,//(+-,'*6%j&%;#2(.%(+C&%*#%<&,"%;<,*%1#"*%#$%*<&",/+1*%>#2%;,'*%*#%3&%,'.%;<>%,1%;&((%,1%,'>%4#(2'*&&"+1)%W&1/&-+,((>1&"4+'0%/&#/(&%;+*<%.+1,3+(+*+&1%k%*<"#20<%@NhlmA%#"%#*<&"%#"0,'+n,*+#'1X6%j&%;+((%3&%(##C+'0%$#"%,((%*<"&&%#$%*<#1&%&(&)&'*1%+'>#2"%1*,*&)&'*i,'.E%>&1E%;&%,-*2,((>%"&,.%*<&)o pL]qLZarJKLZLJUaJ][ZLJUIT[JHq[êĴKLJs[HZMJVKHIcLa6tuvwxyz{|wu}vwx}~�z�{�x��L�eUZL]LÎaJHIMJ[̂KLZJKLGFTeGĴUFaJbKLIJaF[Ia[ZUIcJâeMLÎa�K̀LJ�KHF̂LZ�9F[Ia[ZLMJ9VK[GHZaKUFJ7[Z]%WD&S2+"&.%$#"%,((%1/#'1#"&.%1*2.&'*1X6���������}���w�zx��|��}vwx}���xz�|�{�}~�y��z{|��}���wx{���������}���w�zx��|��}vwx}���xz�|�{�}~�y��z{|��}���wx{���������}���w�zx��|��}vwx}���xz�|�{�}�|uu�x�



��������� ��	
���	����
������������	��������������
���	 ���������	
���	����
���� ���!"#$%!"#&'()**+,'-)./'01'234*.4,)*5'6783/+,



1  

AMBUCS Ramp Building Guide 
 

 

This guide will provide basic information on ramp building to provide access for people with 
disabilities.  It will provide you with links to a source that has a proven track record – The Home 
Ramp Project (Metropolitan Center for Independent Living, Minnesota Division of 
Rehabilitation Services), hereafter referred to as the Minnesota Ramp Project.  Their full 
manual (63 pages) is available online along with a printed version and a videotape about the 
project.  (Ordering information is at the end of this document).  The Minnesota Ramp Project 
uses a modular design for building ramps that allows them to be easily recycled when no longer 
needed.  Their ramp project was honored as a finalist in the 1995 Ford Foundation “Innovations 
in American Government” award program. 

 

 

If you are already building ramps in your community, take the time to read over this 
information and see if you can improve your program plus find additional funding and sources 
for help.  If you haven’t built ramps before, this should give you all the information you need, 
except for your local building codes.  We will also provide some information for long-tread, 
low-riser steps that are easier to use than ramps for some people. 

 

 

Volunteers. Construction crew s of 3 to 4 volunteers are needed for each ramp project.  The 
supervisor of the project can be a volunteer or paid; in any case, that person must be well 
versed in proper construction techniques and compliance with building codes.  The amount of 
time required will vary according to the complexity of the ramp design.  The work is physically 
demanding and can require post- hole digging, shoveling, using a power saw, nailing, lifting, 
and perhaps minor concrete work. 

 

 

In some cases, companies will provide employees to help build ramps as part of their 
community service work.  High schools, technical colleges, church groups, service clubs 
(Jaycees, Lions, etc.), scout organizations, unions, employee service groups, government 
agencies, rehabilitation facilities, centers for independent living, and many others can be 
accessed for collaboration in building ramps.  If you have a university Pi Kappa Phi chapter near 
you, their national outreach program The Ability Experience helps with ramp building through 
their Regional Construction projects.  More information is available on their website: 
www.abilityexperience.org 

 

 

Resources. This section has information about finding the resources needed to get 
 the ramp or steps built. This list is not comprehensive but is intended to provide

http://www.mcil-mn.org/index.php/programs/ramp-project
http://www.mcil-mn.org/index.php/programs/ramp-project
http://www.mcil-mn.org/index.php/programs/ramp-project


2  

ideas to help you get started. How much a ramp or steps will cost depends on how long the 
ramp has to be or how many risers are needed to get into your home. Please review the Basic 
Design Considerations befor e deciding on the final layout of your ramp or steps. Once you 
have determined the layout, you can figure out how much lumber and hardware will be 
needed. Lumber yards and building supply stores can then give you an estimate and may 
provide you with a disc ount if you tell them the purpose of the materials. 
 

 Centers for Independent Living, local non-profit organizations that provide a variety of 
Independent Living services for people with disabilities, are likely to have information 
about access modification resources. Check here to find your local Independent Living 
Center. 

 Search online for local resources in your area. You may search with words like Social 
Service Organizations, Human Services Organizations, Disabled Persons Assistance, and 
Services for Seniors and the name of your city and state. Look for the state and county 
human services agencies, as well as the local building official’s office.  

 Local Building Officials can provide valuable information regarding permit and 
zoning requirements for modifications to homes. They are usually located in the 
inspections or building permit office of city government. 

 State and Area Agencies on Aging are a good information source for local 
programs that assist seniors with services including home modifications. The 
Department of Health and Human Services Administration on Aging website has a 
state directory available at www.hhs.gov/aging/state-resources/index.html 

 Local and national offices of disability specific organizations such as the 
Amputee Coalition of America  www.amputee-coalition.org/ 
Multiple Sclerosis Society  www.nmss.org/ 
Muscular Dystrophy Association  www.mda.org 
National Spinal Cord Injury Association  http://www.spinalcord.org and others 
may have information or assistance available. 

 Local hospitals, rehabilitation facilities and medical equipment supply 
companies may have staff who are familiar with resources in your area. 

 
Specific Programs that may fund ramps and steps. The following are several Federal and 
state programs that can provide assistance. Most have eligibility requirements and it is 
important to make sure all of the required paperwork has been completed before ramp or 
step installation is started. 

http://www.ilru.org/projects/cil-net/cil-center-and-association-directory
http://www.ilru.org/projects/cil-net/cil-center-and-association-directory
www.hhs.gov/aging/state-resources/index.html
http://www.amputee-coalition.org/
http://www.nmss.org/
www.mda.org
http://www.spinalcord.org/


3  

 Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Development 
Block Grant Program (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 
Their web page   www.hud.gov has a large amount of information available. City or 
County Community Development Agencies or Housing Redevelopment Authorities may 
manage CDBG and HOME programs in your area or they will know who does. These 
programs are excellent resources for moderate and low-income individuals and for 
programs that want to provide home modification assistance to people in their 
communities. 

 The U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development has Section 504 Loans 
and Grants  that can be used for accessibility modifications and to repair 
homes. The objective of the program is "to help very low income owner occupants of 
modest single family homes in rural areas repair those homes." Grants are possible 
for homeowners age 62 and over who qualify financially. State office location 
information is at www.rd.usda.gov/contact-us/state-offices.  

 The Veterans Administration Home Improvement/Structural Alteration 
program can provide assistance for qualified veterans. Call a VA hospital or 
veterans assistance organization for more information. 
www.prosthetics.va.gov/psas/HISA2.asp  

 State Housing Finance Agencies, Authorities or Corporations. These programs are 
called different things in different states. About one fourth of these state agencies have 
programs that provide assistance for access modifications to single family homes. 

 Home and Community-Based Waiver Programs administered by county medical 
assistance or services programs may pay for modifications for those who are eligible. 
Check with your county about eligibility requirements 

 The State Vocational Rehabilitation Program may assist eligible individuals 
with home accessibility modifications, if the modifications are needed for getting 
and maintaining employment. 

 

 

Community Resources. Building contractors  can usually build ramps and steps, but do not 
assume they are familiar with proper access design. It is appropriate to give them the 
information in the design chapter of the “How to Build Ramps” manual of the Minnesota Ramp 
Project. If you want to have a modular ramp or steps installed, you can ask the contractor to use 
the plans from the manual. 

 

 

Community service organizations can also use the plans in "How to Build Ramps" to install 
ramps and steps. There are many groups that may volunteer to help in building ramps and 
steps for people. Some of them are: 

 Civitan International  www.civitan.org

http://www.hud.gov/
http://www.rd.usda.gov/contact-us/state-offices
http://www.prosthetics.va.gov/psas/HISA2.asp


4  

 Habitat for Humanity  www.habitat.org  

 Veterans of Foreign Wars www.vfw.org  

 Connect America movement founded by Points of Light Foundation 
www.pointsoflight.org 

 Jaycees  www.usjaycees.org/ 

 Lions  http://www.lionnet.com/ 

 Church organizations, colleges, vocational schools and high schools may have 
community service programs that could provide volunteers, as well. Lumber yards and 
building supply stores can be approached for donations of lumber and supplies. 

 

 

It is common for a combination of resources to be used to get ramps and steps installed. Many 
programs have limited funds available and may be able to offer only partial assistance. 
Working with more than one agency or organization is often necessary in order to obtain a 
ramp or steps. Persistence is one of the best tools available for finding the resources needed to 
get a ramp or steps installed. 

 

 

Useful Points to Consider.  When you have decided that building a ramp is the best 
solution, consider the following: 

Who is the primary user? 

What type of assistive device does the person use (cane, crutches, walker, manual or 
electric wheelchair, motorized 3-wheel cart)? 
Will the person’s abilities change?  Plan for anticipated changes. 

Will the person use the ramp independently or will help be needed? Who will 
provide help and what are that person’s abilities? 
Which entryway is best for the ramp?  Consider the inside as well as outside. 

Narrow doors or hallways can prevent access to a doorway from the inside. 
Placement of existing door handles and swing direction of doors. 
Where does the person want to go most often (garage, driveway, front 
sidewalk)?  Where is the best place to access transportation? 

If there is an attached garage, can a ramp be placed inside? How will 
the ramp affect available yard space? 
Are there barriers such as trees, shrubs, poles, etc.? 

How will the ramp appear? 
What are the local zoning requirements for lot lines and set-backs? 
What will the cost be?  Is there help available for financial assistance if needed? 

Is there a concern about security and “curbside” appearance?  If so, locating the ramp to 
the side or back of a property may minimize the visual indication of a resident with a 
disability. 

http://www.habitat.org/
http://www.vfw.org/
http://www.pointsoflight.org/
http://www.usjaycees.org/
http://www.lionnet.com/


5  

Basic Design Considerations. The following excerpt is from QUEST, Volume 5, Number 2, 
April 1998, a publication of the Muscular Dystrophy Association.  The article is entitled 
“Ramp It” and was written by Phil Ivory. 

Rise Over Run Equals Slope. Perhaps the most important consideration is the slope, which is 
determined by ascertaining the "rise" -- the straight vertical distance a person will travel when 
going up or down a ramp -- versus the "run," which is distance measured along the ground 
from one end of the ramp to the other. The ratio of rise over run gives you the slope. (A 
measurement taken up the sloping surface of the ramp is something else entirely.) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To reach an entrance 3 feet above the ground, a ramp with an ADA-prescribed 1:12 slope would 
have to be 36 feet long. A gentler 1:20 slope would require 60 feet of length to reach the same 
height. Level landings should be used between ramp segments in both cases. 

 

 

A 1:12 slope is one in which the ramp builder must allow 12 feet of horizontal extension for 1 
foot of vertical height. (It's not important whether the measurement is in feet, inches or 
centimeters, but rise and run are usually expressed in one of these units.) Many people confuse 
the fact that a 1:20 slope is less steep than a 1:12 ramp. The larger the second figure, the more 
gentle the slope. 

 

 

The ADA mandates that ramps in public places must not be steeper than 1:12, and that's 
generally found to be a good guideline in building ramps on homes. But while a 1:12 slope may 
be OK for a person in a motorized wheelchair, it may be tough for a manual wheelchair user. A 
gentler 1:16 or 1:20 slope may be in order. 



6  

The downside of building an easy, gradual slope is that it requires a greater amount of distance 
extending out from the home. If your front door is 3 feet off the ground, per the 1:12 slope ratio 
you'd need to have a ramp extending 36 feet. A more gradual slope would need to be even 
longer. But what if there's only 20 feet from your front door to the street or driveway, or if 
there's something in the front yard such as a tree or a garden that you can't bear to disturb? 

 

 

A designer may be tempted to lessen the run by making the ramp steeper, but that's almost 
always the wrong choice. A ramp that's too steep may require too much muscle power for 
those in manual chairs, or for those pushing them, and a power wheelchair can topple 
backwards from its own weight.  They can also cause or aggravate back problems for helpers 
pushing a chair up a ramp, or controlling a chair traveling down one. 

 

 

Twists And Turns. One way to address the length problem without increasing the slope is to 
build turns into the ramp, making it in an "L" shape or even making a "switchback ramp," one 
which includes at least one 180-degree turn. 

 

 

When turns are included, the ramp mu st level off at a landing large enough to allow a 
wheelchair to turn with ease, and then a new ramp segment continues in a new direction. The 
landing at each turn should be at least 5 feet by 5 feet. 

 

 

Another landing is necessary at the top of the ramp by the door to the house. Without it, the 
person in the wheelchair is in danger of slipping back down the ramp while trying to get the 
door open. The height difference between the top of the ramp and the door shouldn't be 
more than half an inch. The same is true for the distance between the bottom of the ramp 
and the ground. 

 

 

Even without turns, a ramp segment shouldn't extend more than 30 feet without stopping 
for a landing. "You don't want to go on a continuous slope for more than that," says Bob 
Zimmerman, an independent living counselor with the Minnesota Division of Rehabilitation 
Services. "Some people want a rest spot every 15 feet. That's where you have to examine 
the needs of the individual." 

 

 

"The most important part of access design is considering the person's total situation in order to 
come up with the best solution," Zimmerman says. "Sometimes ramps are not the best choice 
and looking at lifts or other options is important. If you don't have the room, a lift may be your 
only choice." 



7  

Also, the location of the ramp -- front door, back door or elsewhere -- is an important 
consideration that needs to be carefully thought out. 

 
From the Minnesota Ramp Project guide comes the following information: 

 

 

Determining the Slope. The slope determination process starts by first establishing how 
much total rise has to be covered. Two measurements must be checked to determine this 
figure. The first figure is the distance from the exit door's sill down to the ground, or "grade", 
at the house's foundation. Since a ramp is constructed a certain distance out from the house 
into the yard, though, any change in grade in the area for the ramp's construction also must 
be taken into account. For example, if the change in grade from a home's doorsill to the 
ground at the foundation is 29", and the yard out where the ramp will be sited is flat-no 
change in grade- then the total rise that must be covered is 29". However, if the change in 
grade at another house's foundation is 29" (a), but the yard where the ramp will be located 
drops away another 13" (b), then the total rise that must be covered is 42" (c). (See below) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Once total rise (typically stated in inches) is determined, it is then multiplied by the slope (in 
inches) chosen, to obtain the total amount of horizontal projection (in inches) required to 
achieve the particular slope. Dividing this figure by 12 converts it into a more workable 
measurement of feet of horizontal projection required. For example, say that a ramp with a 
1:12 slope is to be built at the home with a 29" total rise described above. The required 
horizontal projection is 29" X 12" = 348", or when converted to feet, 29'. Say, however, that a 
ramp with a gentler slope-a 1:16-is desired. 29" of total rise X 16" of slope = 464", and when 
divided by 12 to convert to feet, equals over 38 feet of horizontal projection needed. It's 
important to note that the resulting figure is a measurement of amount of horizontal 
projection the layout must contain to achieve a desired slope. It is not a



8  

measurement of distance traveled along the inclined surface, as some people mistakenly 
believe, and it doesn't include any distances/areas required for necessary landings-these 
are extra. 
 

 

Landings. Landings are the level areas required at the top, bottom, and sometimes at 
intermediate locations in a rampway. These areas allow a person to maintain balance while 
performing tasks like opening doors, transferring in and out of a vehicle, resting for a time, 
and safely changing direction of travel when a ramp makes a turn. Recommended landing 
sizes are based on these functions. 

 

 

Top Landings: Top landings should be nearly flush with the exterior door threshold. 1/2" is 
the typical maximum, particularly when a wheelchair user is involved – anything larger will 
abruptly stop a chair's relatively small front wheel, or is a tripping hazard for walkers. Pay 
attention, too, to threshold specs if a new primary door is being installed. If a prehung unit's 
going in, most don't have the low threshold that's needed here. 

 

 

For homes on footed foundations, it's advisable in most places to bolt the top landing into the 
home's foundation. This will avoid the potential problem of the relatively lightweight ramp 
landing lifting up due to frost heave and jamming under an outswinging door (like a storm 
door). For unfooted structures, or temporary foundations such as mobile homes on blocks, 
bolting the landing may still be appropriate, but the ramp shouldn't be footed for the opposite 
reason. Local soil conditions – e.g., clay vs. loam – will also play a definite role here. 

 

 

Top landings at minimum should be at least 60" X 60" if there is an outswinging door, with at 
least a 12" to 24" of "elbow room" space provided off the door's handle side, particularly for 
a person using mobility equipment. These dimensions give enough room for a person to 
move off to the side while opening the door without having to back up to get out of the way 
of its swing. If there is no outswinging door, the landing may be somewhat narrower – 
probably 48" at minimum. 
 
Intermediate Landings: Intermediate landings for a long, in-line run of ramp can 

have the same width as the running surfaces, and length can range from 36 " to 60” 
– the slope chosen is a factor to account for here, with a steeper slope like a 1:12 
requiring a longer distance in which to stop when descending. A rough guideline to 
use is to install an intermediate landing if a section of ramp covers more than a 30" 

change in rise, but persons with limited stamina/control may need one sooner than this. 
Dimensions for intermediate landings where a direction change occurs depend on ramp width 
and the user's circumstances. When a chair user is involved, a 48" X 



9  

48" landing for a 90 degree turn is comfortable; for an 180 degree turn, 48" by twice the 
width of the two ramp sections is typical. 

 

 

Bottom Landings: For bottom landings, typical minimum dimensions when in-line travel is 
involved are as wide as the ramp by about 48" long for someone walking, and about 60" to 
72" for a chair user. Larger-width landings may be called for if the person has to make a 
direction change (e.g. 90-degree turn). Make sure the ramp/landing intersection doesn't 
have a "lip" greater than 1/2" which would become a tripping/rolling hazard. 

 

 

Rampway Widths and Running Surface Features. Running surface widths can range from 36" 
to 48", depending on the personal assistance or mobility equipment involved. A width of 36" 
may be appropriate for someone walking or using a cane, crutches, or a walker (32" may be 
appropriate for persons who need to lean on both railings when moving). A width of 42" to 48" 
is appropriate for someone using a wheelchair or where a person can walk with assistance at 
the side. 

 

 

Surface height changes from the doorsill and top landing to the bottom landing shouldn't vary 
more than 1/2". Higher bumps can abruptly stop a wheelchair or trip people walking, 
particularly those with an irregular gait. 

 

 

All ramp runs and landings must be level from side to side. A cross slope (slope perpendicular to 
the direction of travel) can upset a person's balance and require more strength and effort on 
the person's "downhill" side. Even the almost unnoticeable slope (1:96) built into public 
sidewalks to aid with water runoff can be tiring for a wheelchair user to negotiate. 

 

 

It is advisable for ramps to have an "anti-slip" running surface; depending on local building 
code enforcement, this may be a requirement. On wooden ramps, treatments tha t are used 
include commercially-available "grit" tapes, strips of rolled roofing or shingling, or laying 
down coats of polyurethane into which sand is sprinkled. For concrete ramps, the surface can 
be brushed with a broom before it hardens to create a rough texture. 

 

 

Safety Features. Installation of safety features including handrails, guardrails, "crutch 
stops," guttering and sheltering should also be considered for a ramp building project. 

 

 

Handrails should account for variables including a person's height, arm and hand strength, how 
the rails are used, and any local building code requirements that may 



10  

apply. For example, standing users who lean on rails for support with arms extended often 
need a very different rail height than that used by persons propelling a wheelchair by pulling 
along the rails. 31 " to 34" is the typical height range, and the rails should be capable of 
supporting a 250 lb. load at any point along the length. The diameter should be no more than 1 
1/2", and may need to be smaller for children or adults with impaired grip strength. The 
preferred material is wood. Metal piping is sometimes used, but may present a problem for 
exposed skin in the wintertime. 

 

 

Guardrails and edging called "crutch stops" or "bump boards" are also good safety factors 
that keep users from slipping off the side of a ramp or landing. Guardrails are mounted along 
the structure's perimeter, usually at a seated person's knee height-18" to 20" or so. "Crutch 
stops" are curbing mounted on, or a few inches above, the surface of the structure's 
perimeter. 

 

 

Two additional safety features to consider are guttering and sheltering. If not present, roof 
gutters may be advisable for ramps running close to a home to handle water runoff that may 
create slipping hazards. In cases where the person's mobility is severely restricted, some form 
of rampway sheltering may also need to be considered. Depending on siting and home 
roofline, one strategy for ramps hugging a house is to build a small extension off the roof. 
Support for the lower edge can be provided by extending the ramp's posting vertically. 

 

 

More information regarding Ramp Layouts, Construction Methods, Codes and Permits, 
Ordering Materials, Materials Order Form, Building Process, and many pages of 
engineering designs for the various ramp and step components may be found in the Ramp 
Manual, see below. 

 

 

The Manual: 
 

You may purchase a printed copy of the manual from the Metropolitan 

Center for Independent Living (MCIL).  The manual is $20 and DVDs are $20 each 
(prices subject to change without notice).  Please make checks payable to MCIL and 
mail to:  MCIL, 530 Robert St. N., St. Paul, MN 55101. For more information contact 
Amber at amberb@mcil-mn.org or 651-603-2029. 

mailto:amberb@mcil-mn.org


11  

 

Videotapes: 

 Tips for Building Modular Ramps and Steps, a 30-minute video companion 
to the construction manual. This video illustrates the design and 
construction techniques that are in the manual. Great for project leaders and 
construction volunteers. See ordering information above. 

 Hometime Building & Remodeling for Accessibility (30 
Minutes) features a project ramp (using recycled plastic planking), kitchen 

and bathroom accessibility, and other useful projects.  
 

 

Ramp Alternatives. For many people with mobility impairments, long-tread low-riser steps  
can be easier and safer to use when compared to a 1:12 slope ramp. The large level area allows 
easy walker use, and the riser's short height makes stepping up and down easier than standard 
steps. Balance is easier to maintain on the flat steps than on a sloped surface; the steps require 
less space than a ramp and are less expensive. Like our ramps, the modular design allows the 
steps to be easily installed, used as long as needed, and removed for use at a new location.   

 
Other Sources of Information 

 The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) offers a 60-page 
report with information for those working to make home modifications, and the 
universal design principles they embody. Residential Remodeling and Universal 
Design: Making Homes More Comfortable and Accessible, a guidebook for the 
housing professional or the do-it-yourselfer. These and other titles may be found on 
line at  http://www.huduser.org/ or call 800-927-7589. 

 The Center for Universal Design, a part of the School of Design at North 
Carolina State University in Raleigh, specializes in promoting accessibility and a 
universal design in buildings. Research, training, technical assistance, referrals and 
other information are available to individuals. People interested in universal design 
can obtain publications, videos and other resources. For more information, visit the 
Center’s website at  https://www.ncsu.edu/ncsu/design/cud  

http://www.hometime.com/Howto/projects/access/acc_1.htm
http://www.klownwerkz.com/ramp/StepsPage.html
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/publications/destech/resid.html
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/publications/destech/resid.html
http://www.huduser.org/
https://www.ncsu.edu/ncsu/design/cud


 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
August 9, 2018 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations & Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF A SUBMISSION OF AN ADVISORY QUESTION OF 
RAIL SERVICE TO THE ELECTORS OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
 

WHEREAS, Section 5-1005.5 of the Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/5-1005.5, provides that a 
County Board, by a vote of a majority of its members, may authorize an advisory question of 
public policy to be placed on the ballot at the next regularly scheduled election in the County; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 10 ILCS 5/28-2(c), the County Board may place a referendum 
question on a ballot to be submitted to the public so long as a resolution authorizing placing the 
question on the ballot is adopted no fewer than 79 days before a regularly scheduled election where 
the referendum question is to appear; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board wishes to place an advisory referendum question regarding 
whether the state of Illinois should pursue the reinstatement of passenger rail service to northwest 
Illinois on the ballot of the next regularly scheduled election on November 6, 2018. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the following advisory question be placed on the ballot in the County of 
Winnebago to be voted on by all qualified electors on November 6, 2018: 
 

 
SHALL THE STATE OF ILLINOIS PURSUE 
REINSTATING PASSENGER RAIL SERVICE TO 
NORTHWEST ILLINOIS FROM CHICAGO, 
THROUGH ROCKFORD, TO EAST DUBUQUE? 
 

 
YES ________  
 
 NO  ________  
 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the question as fully set forth above is authorized 

and shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the County of Winnebago at the regularly 
scheduled election to be held on November 6, 2018, in accordance with all applicable provisions 
of Illinois law; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk of the County of Winnebago is 

hereby directed to certify the question of public policy set forth above in accordance with the 
Illinois Election Code no later than August 20, 2018, and to take any other actions necessary to 



cause the question to be placed on the ballot of the regularly scheduled election to be held on 
November 6, 2018. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from 

and after passage and approval pursuant to law.  
 

         Respectfully submitted,  
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE  

 
AGREE        DISAGREE  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Gary Jury, Chairman      Gary Jury, Chairman  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Angie Goral       Angie Goral  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Joe Hoffman       Joe Hoffman  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Dorothy Redd       Dorothy Redd  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Eli Nicolosi       Eli Nicolosi  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Keith McDonald      Keith McDonald  
 
________________________________   ________________________________  
Jean Crosby       Jean Crosby 
 

APPROVED this _____ day of __________________________, 2018 by the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois. 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
Attested by:      of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
Ayes: ______  Nays: ______  Absent: ____ 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 



























































 

BOARD 
APPOINTMENTS 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: August 9, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Rebecca Ihne of Rockford, Illinois, 61109 to serve a 3-year term from June 2018-June 2021 on 
the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District Board. 
 

About the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District 
Location:  4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL 

Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to the Village 
of Cherry Valley and Winnebago and Boone Counties 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 



Rebecca Sue (Cornman) Ihne 

Education: 
 •    June 1963  -  Graduation from Rockford East High School   
 •    June 1967  -  Bachelor’s Degree in Education from Northern Illinois University 
 •    August 1972  -  Master’s  Degree in Outdoor Education from Northern Illinois Univ. 
 •    About 40  credits earned beyond Master’s Degree in Education in Reading, Early   
  Childhood, and Behavior Disorders 

Employment: 
 •   1967-1971  -  Rockford School District 205 
       Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1971-1972  -  Part time in Rockford School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1972-1974  -  Breaks to have 2 children. 
      Subbed in Rockford District   
      Taught summer school in Rockford School District 
 •Summer 1974   Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University 
 •   1975-1976  -  Full time in Rockford School District 
         Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
 •   1976-1981  -  Kinnikinnick School District 
        Teacher/Diagnostician for Learning Disabled children 
         Reading Instructor for 4th & 5th Grade students 
 •   1981-1986  -  Subbed in Rockford School District  
 •   1986-2000  -  Rockford Public School District 
         Teacher for Behavior Disordered Students  (1981-1995) 
                   Reading Specialist & Implementor at Stiles Elementary  (1995-2000) 
        Supervised Student Teachers from Northern Illinois University  
 •   2000     Retired from Teaching  
 •   2007-2013    Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Fire Commissioner - Secretary 
 •.  2013-Present  Cherry Valley Fire Protection District - Trustee - Secretary 

Page �1



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: July 25, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Kent Peterson of Pecatonica, Illinois, 61063 to serve a 6-year term from December 2017 –
December 2023 on the 12 Mile Grove Cemetery Association Board 
 

About the Winnebago County 12 Mile Grove Cemetery Association Board 
Location:  321 10th Street, Pecatonica, IL  61063 

 
Service Description:  Administrative, care and maintaining of cemetery formed by association. 

 
Board Composition:  Seven (7) members appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 

advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation Secretary if applicable  
 

Origin of Entity:  805 ILCS 320/1 Section 1 that any six (6) or more persons may organize a Cemetery 
Association to be owned, managed and controlled in the manner hereinafter provided 
 

Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Interment fees and sale of grave plots 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: August 1, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Carol Wilke of Durand, Illinois, 61024 to serve a 5-year term from May 2018–May 2023 on the 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

About the Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals 
Location:  404 Elm Street 

 
Service Description:  Hears public testimony on zoning petitions filed by petitioners and makes 

recommendations to the County Board on the petitions 
 

Board Composition:  Seven members from different townships appointed by the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman with the advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation $100 per meeting  Meets 2nd Wednesday of each month 
 

Origin of Entity:  Article 2, Section 2.3 of the Winnebago County Codes 
Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Funded from County’s General Fund 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



CAROL  L.  WILKE 
11745 Freeport Road 

Durand, IL  61024 
(815) 248-3062 

clwilke@stateline-isp.com 
 

 
SKILLS AND ACTIVITIES 
 

• Winnebago County Zoning Board of Appeals, June 1996 to December 2008. 
• Lake Summerset Association Board, 1996 to 1999. 
• People-oriented and able to achieve goals and results both independently and collaboratively by utilizing 

excellent written and oral communication skills, dependability, analytical skills, detail-orientation, and 
organization. 

• Proficient in Microsoft Windows, Microsoft Excel, Word, and PowerPoint. 
 
 
EDUCATION 
 
Bachelor of Science, ROCKFORD COLLEGE – 3.96 GPA, class rank 8/271 – May 1996. 
 Business Administration, emphasis in Marketing, (summa cum laude). 
HONORS: Phi Beta Kappa Scholarship Recipient – Rockford College – September 1995. 
  Distinguished Scholar’s List, Spring & Fall 1994, 1995, Spring 1996. 
  Outstanding Student Writing Award – Rock Valley College – May 1992. 
Associate of Applied Science, ROCK VALLEY COLLEGE – May 1975. 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE 
 
Measurement Coordinator, ROCKFORD HEALTH SYSTEM, February 2001 to January 2009, 

Quality Improvement:  Supervise the smooth operation of the patient satisfaction survey process for the 
entire healthcare system, which includes maintaining an efficient and positive working relationship with 
the vendor, validating statements, designing and distributing reports, analyzing statistical results.  In 
addition, design and generate clear and concise reports that contain various clinical measures for 
numerous departments throughout the system.  Provide data for the physician reappointment process.   
Assist with measuring and reporting staffing effectiveness. 
Accomplishments:  Successfully set-up the survey process with the patient satisfaction vendor for five 
different services within the system.  Designed clear and concise custom patient satisfaction reports for 
senior leadership.  Educated staff throughout the system on how to interpret the patient satisfaction 
reports.  Established efficient methods of reporting both monthly and quarterly clinical data. 

Planning Associate, ROCKFORD HEALTH SYSTEM, March 1999 to February 2001, 
 Planning & Marketing Department:  Design and generate clear and concise written, statistical and  
 graphical reports that summarize consumer/market research activities for various management 
 personnel.  Perform in-depth research of new and existing markets, including demographics, payer  
 mix, and utilization.  Acquire and maintain both internal and competitive data from various  
 external sources.  Develop, maintain, and manage various databases.  Compile and analyze data  
 for the strategic planning efforts of the department. 
 Accomplishments:  Improved the design of various Trendstar report formats to maximize efficiency 

of data retrieval and minimize the turn-around time of data requests.  Developed and managed a 
 resource library to be used for various market studies.   Created an effective process to monitor 
 residential growth in a two-county area. 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: August 2, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Ken Gibler of Durand, Illinois, 61014 to serve a 3-year term from May 2018 –December 2021 on 
the Durand Sanitary District Board 
 

About the Winnebago County Durand Sanitary District 
Location:  308 W. Main Street, Durand, IL 61024 

 
Service Description:  Provides sanitary sewer service to the Durand area 

 
Board Composition:  Three (3) members appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with the 

advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation President & Treasurer: $330    Secretary: $355 
Origin of Entity:  Sanitary District Act of 1917 (70 ILCS 2405/3) 
Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

District levies an annual property tax, charges for service and replacement tax 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 



 

Kenneth R. Gibler 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

409 E. North St. 
Durand, IL  61014 

815-248-2870 
gibler1@mchsi.com 

 
 
___________________________________________  EXPERIENCE  ___________________________________________ 

 
 

US II ENTERPRISES 
Durand, IL 

Owner           2012 - Present 
 
 
 

BENNETT CONSTRUCTION 
Pecatonica, IL 

Superintendent                1972 - 2013  
 
 
 

DURAND VILLAGE BOARD 
Durand, IL 

Zoning Board Member    1976 - 1983 
 
Zoning Board Administrator               1983 - 1991 
 
Village Board Member  1991 - 1999 
 
Sanitary Board Member        2003 - Present 

 
 

 
____________________________________________  EDUCATION ____________________________________________ 

 
 

PECATONICA HIGH SCHOOL 
Pecatonica, IL 

High School Diploma 1966 - 1970 
 

 


	Revised Agenda
	Proclamation
	Announcements & Communications
	Chairman's Report
	County Administrator's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Finance Committee
	Res Strongly Encouraging Sheriff's Dept to Comply with Recommendations
	Decentralized Bank Account Internal Audit 
	Ordinance Amending Sections of Chap 2 of Cty Code of Ordinances
	Zoning Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Res of a Submission of an Advisory Question of Rail Service to Electors
	Public Works Committee
	18-025 Res Authorizing an Agreement
	Board Appointment
	Rebecca Ihne - Executive Summary
	Resume
	Kent Peterson - Executive Summary
	Carol Wilke - Executive Summary
	Resume
	Kenneth Gibler - Executive Summary
	Resume



